
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




Minutes
Board of Commissioners


May 22, 2008
7:00 P.M.


The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on Thursday, May 22, 2008, at 7:00
 p.m. in the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville,
Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Jack Smith, Chairman
Herb Frady, Vice-Chairman
Robert Horgan
Eric Maxwell
Peter Pfeifer


Staff Present: Jack Krakeel, Interim County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant


 Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk
_________________________________________________________________________________


Chairman Smith called the meeting to order.
Commissioner Pfeifer offered the Invocation
Pledge of Allegiance.


ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA:
Commissioner Frady made a motion to approve the agenda as presented.  Commissioner Horgan seconded
the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.


PRESENTATION/RECOGNITION:
PROCLAMATION RECOGNIZING THE MONTH OF MAY AS “OLDER AMERICANS MONTH”:
A. Presentation of Proclamation recognizing the month of May as “Older Americans Month.”


Chairman Smith read the Proclamation recognizing the month of May as “Older Americans Month” and
presented it to representatives of Senior Services.  A copy of the Proclamation, identified as “Attachment No.
1", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


RECOGNITION OF BARBARA ARNOLD UPON HER RETIREMENT:
B. Presentation to Barbara Arnold in recognition of her years of service to Fayette County in the Tax


Commissioner’s Office.







Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes


May 22, 2008


Page 2


The Board recognized Barbara Arnold for her thirty-four years of service in the Fayette County Tax
Commissioner’s Office.  Tax Commissioner George Wingo commended Barbara on her years of service and
she was presented with a rocking chair.  


RECOGNITION OF DEBBIE GLAZIER UPON HER RETIREMENT:
C. Presentation to Debbie Glazier in recognition of her years of service to Fayette County in the Water


System.


The Board recognized Debbie Glazier for over thirty years of service in the Fayette County Water System.  
Water System Director Tony Parrott commended Debbie for her years of service and she was presented with
a rocking chair.  


PUBLIC HEARING: Director of Community Development Pete Frisina read the rules for public hearings.  A
copy of the rules, identified as “Attachment No. 2", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


PACKAGED BEER AND WINE LICENSE APPROVED FOR BL CRAVEN, INC.:
D. Consideration of a Packaged Beer and Wine License for BL Craven, Inc. d/b/a Brenda’s Country


Store, 1619 S.R. 92 South, Fayetteville, Georgia, Brenda Craven, Owner/Applicant.  This property is
located in Land Lot 247 of the 4  District, fronts on S.R. 92 South, and is zoned A-R.  This is for ath


Change of Ownership only.  


Chairman Smith asked if the applicant or a representative was present.  Seeing none, the Chairman asked
if anyone wished to speak in support of the petition.  Hearing none, he asked if anyone wished to speak in
opposition to the petition.  Hearing none, he declared the public hearing closed and asked for the Board’s
pleasure in this matter.


Commissioner Pfeifer made a motion to approve the packaged beer and wine license for BL Craven, Inc. d/b/a
Brenda’s Country Store.  Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.  A copy of the
request, identified as “Attachment No. 3", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


ORDINANCE NO. 2008-04 - AMENDMENTS TO THE FAYETTE COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE
REGARDING ARTICLE VI. DISTRICT USE REQUIREMENTS, SECTION 6-2. EST ESTATE RESIDENTIAL
DISTRICT APPROVED:
E. Consideration of proposed amendments to the Fayette County Zoning Ordinance regarding Article


VI. District Use Requirements, Section 6-2. EST Estate Residential District, to reduce the minimum
house size required under Section F. Dimensional Requirements, Section 3.  Floor Area as presented
by the Planning and Zoning Department.  The Planning Commission recommended approval to
reduce the minimum floor area from 3,000 square feet to 2,500 square feet (4-1). 


Director of Community Development Pete Frisina remarked that this item had originated as a result of a
request from Rod Wright of Peachstate Land Development who holds the only parcel in the County that was
zoned for EST.  He said Mr. Wright had come before the Board to ask for permission for staff to review the
house size requirement in the EST zoning district.  He said the Board had directed staff to review this and it







Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes


May 22, 2008


Page 3


was discussed with the Planning Commission.  He remarked that this information was brought back to the
Board of Commissioners at the April 2  meeting and there was discussion of the square footage being 2,300.nd


He noted that the Planning Commission had recommended a 2,500 square feet minimum house size and this
was the recommendation before the Board tonight.  


Chairman Smith asked if anyone was present to speak in favor of the proposed amendment to the Fayette
County Zoning Ordinance.  Hearing none, he asked if anyone wished to speak in opposition.  Hearing none,
he declared the public hearing closed and asked for the Board’s pleasure in this matter.  


Commissioner Maxwell made a motion to follow the recommendation of the Planning Commission to reduce
the minimum floor area to 2,500 square feet in the Estate Residential District (EST).  Commissioner Pfeifer
seconded the motion, discussion followed.


Commissioner Maxwell noted that this was the only piece of property in Fayette County that was designated
EST zoning.  He said it was the Planning Commission’s recommendation with a vote of 4-1 to recommend
2,500 square feet.  He remarked that the minimum lot size would remain at 2.5 acres and this amendment was
simply dealing with the square footage of the homes.  


Commissioner Frady remarked that the EST zoning had been requested and approved by the Board.  He felt
if the Board changed this square footage, it would give the appearance of an attempt to help sell houses.  He
felt the house size should not be changed and felt it would open “pandora’s box” in regard to square footage
requirements in other zoning districts.  He said there were already several homes built there and he was not
in favor of reducing the house size now for the sale of future homes in this same subdivision.  He said he could
not support this motion.


Commissioner Horgan said he agreed somewhat with Commissioner Frady in that the County did make some
concessions with this group on the estate lots.  He felt if the economy was strong right now, then there would
be no discussion of trying to change this ordinance.  He said the Planning Commission was not united in trying
to change this and noted that it was a 4-1 vote.  He said if the Board changed the zoning it might appear that
the Board was helping with the profitability of a builder.  He also noted that there were already existing homes
built in this subdivision and he would not be able to consider changing the square footage requirement now.


Commissioner Pfeifer said he agreed that it was not the Board’s business to make money for a builder or take
money from a builder.  He felt that no one could afford to purchase land in Fayette County and put cheap
housing on it and to him the market was what determines what house size should be and not individuals’
conceptions as to what they feel it should be.  He said he would support this amendment change.  


Chairman Smith expressed concern that this was a zoning classification that apparently no one was using
which seemed to indicate to him that the zoning classification itself was unnecessary.  He felt staff might need
to review this and determine whether or not this zoning classification was even necessary.  


Commissioner Frady said he would like an overall comprehensive review of the zoning ordinance.  







Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes


May 22, 2008


Page 4


Mr. Frisina remarked that the last overview was done in 1998 where there was an overview of the entire zoning
ordinance and this was the time that EST came in as a five acre zoning.  He said he was not sure how a
zoning district could be rewritten to fit what had already been done there since it had a conservation element
to it.  


The motion carried 3-2 with Commissioner Horgan and Commissioner Frady voting in opposition.  A copy of
the request and Ordinance No. 2008-04, identified as “Attachment No. 4", follow these minutes and are made
an official part hereof.  


DISCUSSION OF AMENDMENTS TO THE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE FAYETTE COUNTY
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN REGARDING THE S.R. 54 OVERLAY DISTRICT:  
F. Consideration of proposed amendments to the Land Use Element of the Fayette County


Comprehensive Plan regarding the S.R. 54 West Overlay District as presented by the Planning and
Zoning Department.  The Planning Commission recommended to table the proposed amendments
to the May 15, 2008 workshop to allow further discussion and to hold a public hearing on June 5, 2008
(5-0) and heard by the Board of Commissioners on June 26, 2008.


Chairman Smith remarked that the Planning Commission had requested to table this matter until their June
5  meeting and to be heard by the Board of Commissioners on June 26 .  He asked for the Board’s pleasureth th


in this matter.


Commissioner Frady made a motion to approve the request by the Planning Commission to table this item to
their June 5  meeting and to be heard by the Board of Commissioners on June 26 .  Commissioner Horganth th.


seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 5", follows
these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


PUBLIC COMMENT:
BRUNO NOTO:   Bruno Noto, Snead Road, Fayetteville commented on the Snead Road paving project.  He
thanked the Board and staff for everything they had done regarding the Snead Road paving project.  He asked
the Board if it would be possible to send a letter outlining the status of the project to all of the landowners living
on Snead Road.


Chairman Smith remarked that trying to get this project completed had been a challenge.  He felt there was
a time frame now where this project could move forward.  He said the remainder of the right-of-way needed
to be acquired and he felt the schedule could be met.  He thanked Mr. Noto for his comments.  


CONSENT AGENDA: Commissioner Frady requested item #7 be removed for discussion.  Commissioner
Maxwell requested item #13 be removed for discussion.  Commissioner Frady made a motion to approve
consent agenda items 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12 and  14 as presented.  Commissioner Horgan seconded
the motion.  The motion carried   5-0.  







Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes


May 22, 2008


Page 5


RESOLUTION NO. 2008-09 - SUPPORTING THE GEORGIA WILDLIFE FEDERATION FOR USE OF
PRESCRIBED FIRE:  
1. Approval of request from Fire and Emergency Services for adoption of a Resolution supporting the


Georgia Wildlife Federation and the use of prescribed fire for multiple ecological and economic
benefits to the public.  A copy of request and Resolution No. 2008-09, identified as “Attachment No.
6", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


RAVEN’S LANDING SUBDIVISION APPROVED AS A STREET LIGHT DISTRICT: 
2. Approval of staff’s recommendation to allow Raven’s Landing Subdivision to become a street light


district.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 7", follows these minutes and is made
an official part hereof.  


TAX ASSESSOR’S REQUEST FOR A BUDGET ADJUSTMENT:
3. Approval of request from the Tax Assessor for a budget transfer from the Technical Services Account


to the Computer Equipment Account in order to purchase a plotter and computer as approved in the
FY 2008 budget.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 8", follows these minutes and
is made an official part hereof.  


SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT’S REQUEST FOR A BUDGET ADJUSTMENT:  
4. Approval of request from the Sheriff’s Department to amend the Overtime Budget for the Criminal


Investigation Division by $5,814.22 as a result of reimbursement of overtime funds from various
Federal programs for personnel assigned to work investigations in cooperation with these agencies.
A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 9", follows these minutes and is made an official
part hereof.  


SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT’S REQUEST FOR A VEHICLE REPLACEMENT:  
5. Approval of request from the Sheriff’s Department to replace a 2003 Ford Explorer and authorization


to sign the tag and title paperwork for the new vehicle as recommended by the Vehicle Replacement
Committee.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 10", follows these minutes and is
made an official part hereof.  


SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT’S REQUEST FOR DISPOSAL OF VEHICLES:
6. Approval of request from the Sheriff’s Department Criminal Investigation Division to dispose of three


high mileage vehicles in poor condition that will be sold or traded in for three comparable vehicles.
A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No.11", follows these minutes and is made an official
part hereof.  


PURCHASING DEPARTMENT’S REQUEST TO EXTEND THE ANNUAL CONTRACT WITH WALKER
CONCRETE:
7. Approval of request from the Purchasing Department to extend the annual contract with Walker


Concrete for ready-mix concrete at the same prices of the original agreement for one year to expire
on April 30, 2009.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No.12", follows these minutes and
is made an official part hereof.  







Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes


May 22, 2008


Page 6


Commissioner Frady questioned the current prices for ready-mix concrete.


Interim County Administrator Jack Krakeel remarked that staff had done an analysis on the current prices for
concrete and it was determined that the renewal rate quoted by Walker Concrete was below the current market
rate.  He said this was the best rate that the County could get in the current market environment and it was
below the competitive rates.


Commissioner Frady made a motion to approve the request from the Purchasing Department to extend the
annual contract with Walker Concrete for ready-mix concrete at the same prices of the original agreement for
one year to expire on April 30, 2009.  Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.


RANDY HAYES REAPPOINTED TO THE FAYETTE COUNTY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY:
8. Approval of reappointment of Randy Hayes to an additional four year term on the Fayette County


Development Authority which began on April 10, 2008, and will end on April 9, 2012.  A copy of the
request, identified as “Attachment No. 13", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


JACK KRAKEEL REAPPOINTED TO THE FAYETTE COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY:  
9. Approval of reappointment of Jack Krakeel to the Fayette County Hospital Authority for an additional


four year term beginning June 1, 2008, and will end on May 31, 2012.  A copy of the request, identified
as “Attachment No. 14", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


STEVEN WIDENER REAPPOINTED TO THE FAYETTE COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY:  
10. Approval of reappointment of Steven Widener to the Fayette County Hospital Authority for an


additional four year term beginning June 1, 2008, and will end on May 31, 2012.  A copy of the
request, identified as “Attachment No.15", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


TERRY WILLIS REAPPOINTED TO THE MCINTOSH TRAIL COMMUNITY SERVICE BOARD:  
11. Approval of reappointment of Mrs. Terry Willis to the McIntosh Trail Community Service Board for an


additional four year term beginning July 1, 2008, and will end on June 30, 2012.  A copy of the
request, identified as “Attachment No .16", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


BRIAN CARDOZA APPOINTED TO THE FAYETTE COUNTY PUBLIC FACILITIES AUTHORITY:  
12. Approval of appointment of Brian Cardoza to fill the unexpired term of Chuck Watkins on the Fayette


County Public Facilities Authority with said term ending on February 28, 2009.  A copy of the request,
identified as “Attachment No. 17", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


THOMAS STEPHENS APPOINTED TO THE FAYETTE COUNTY RECREATION COMMISSION:
13. Approval of appointment of Thomas Stephens to a four year term on the Fayette County Recreation


Commission which began April 1, 2008, and will end on March 31, 2012.  A copy of the request,
identified as “Attachment No. 18", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  







Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes


May 22, 2008


Page 7


Commissioner Maxwell made a motion to appoint Thomas Stephens to a four year term on the Fayette County
Recreation Commission which began April 1, 2008 and will end on March 31, 2012.  Commissioner Horgan
seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0. 


MINUTES:
14. Approval of minutes for Board of Commissioners’ meetings held on April 2, 2008 and April 24, 2008.


OLD BUSINESS:
G.          Water System Director Tony Parrott will ask for the Board’s consideration to submit an application to


the Department of Natural Resources to modify the County’s water restrictions from the current Level
4 to Level 2 which would allow for outside water use three days a week on the odd/even system with
no outside watering on Friday.


Water System Director Tony Parrott asked for the Board’s consideration to submit an application to the
Department of Natural Resources to modify the County’s water restrictions from the current Level 4 to
something less.  He noted that Level 4 consisted of a level A, B. and C and the County would not know which
level it would get until the information was sent to the D.N.R. He said the D.N.R. would review the request
within five days and then let the County know which level the County would be eligible for. He noted that it
should take no longer than two weeks to get an answer.  He asked for authorization for the Chairman to
execute the application.


Commissioner Frady made a motion to authorize Water System Director Tony Parrott to proceed with
submitting a petition to the Department of Natural Resources to modify the County’s water restrictions from
the current level 4 and authorization for the Chairman to execute the application.  Commissioner Horgan
seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.  A copy of the request together with the application,  identified
as “Attachment No. 19", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT:
None.  


ATTORNEY’S REPORT:
ASPHALT RESURFACING CONTRACT:  County Attorney Scott Bennett asked for the Board’s consideration
to authorize the Chairman to execute the Asphalt Resurfacing Contract that was awarded to C.W. Matthews
Contracting Co., Inc.  


Commissioner Frady made a motion to authorize the Chairman to execute the asphalt resurfacing contract that
was awarded to C.W. Matthews Contracting Co., Inc.  Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  The
motion carried 5-0.  A copy of the contract, identified as “Attachment No. 20", follows these minutes and is
made an official part hereof.  


STAFF REPORTS:
None. 







Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes


May 22, 2008


Page 8


BOARD REPORTS:
COMMISSIONER PFEIFER: Commissioner Pfeifer asked for the Board’s consideration to grant Mr. Noto’s
request for the Interim County Administrator Jack Krakeel to send a letter to the residents of Snead Road
regarding the status of Snead Road.  


It was the consensus of the Board that the Interim County Administrator Jack Krakeel would send a letter to
the residents of Snead Road providing them with the status of the project.  


COMMISSIONER PFEIFER: Commissioner Pfeifer expressed concern regarding the current format of Board
of Commissioners’ meeting minutes as well as official minutes for other commissions and committees of the
County.  He remarked that the meeting minutes for many years were transcribed verbatim and now they were
abbreviated minutes.  He also commented on a recent newspaper article written by a citizen that the
attachments were not included with the approved minutes. He said he would like the format to return to
verbatim transcription.


Commissioner Pfeifer made a motion to return to verbatim transcription of the Board of Commissioners’
meetings.  Commissioner Maxwell seconded the motion for discussion.


Commissioner Maxwell remarked that a court reporter would be necessary in order to have verbatim
transcription of the minutes and this might involve reading approximately 150 pages of minutes per meeting.
He noted that there would also be the cost involved for the court reporter’s services.  


County Attorney Scott Bennett stated that the Georgia Open Meetings Act states that the minutes of a meeting
for any agency shall be promptly recorded and such records shall be open to public inspection once approved
as official by the agency but in no case later than immediately following the next regular meeting of the agency.
He said one of his concerns was to get the minutes prepared promptly and provided to the Board for approval
at the next meeting.  He said it also stated in the Act that said minutes shall as a minimum include the names
of members present at the meeting, a description of each motion or proposal made and a record of all votes.
He said the recordings of all meetings are also kept as a record of what happened at the meeting if anyone
wanted to hear those.  


County Clerk Carol Chandler responded to the comment regarding minutes on the County’s website and
having the attachments included.  She said attachments to minutes were not placed on the website but as far
as the official record that was maintained in the County Clerk’s Office, all of the attachments were included with
the official minutes.  


Interim County Administrator Jack Krakeel interjected that the Board of Commissioners’ meeting Agenda that
was posted on the County’s website does include all attachments and backup material for that Agenda and
this was available to all citizens.  


Chairman Smith asked if there was any further discussion.  Hearing none, he called for the vote.  







Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes


May 22, 2008


Page 9


The motion failed 1-4 with Chairman Smith, Commissioner Frady, Commissioner Maxwell and Commissioner
Horgan voting in opposition.  


COMMISSIONER FRADY: Commissioner Frady asked the staff to review the zoning classifications and
determine if they were still adequate and protect the County.  He noted that it had been ten years since the
last review.   


Director of Community Development Pete Frisina said he would be glad to give the Board an overview at a
Board Workshop meeting and the Board agreed.   


EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
COUNTY ATTORNEY SCOTT BENNETT:  County Attorney Scott Bennett asked for an Executive Session
to discuss three real estate matters.  


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to adjourn to Executive Session to discuss three real estate matters.
Commissioner Pfeifer seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.


Chairman Smith reconvened the meeting.


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to authorize the Chairman to execute the Executive Session Affidavit
affirming that three real estate matters were discussed in Executive Session.  Commissioner Frady seconded
the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.  A copy of the Executive Session Affidavit, identified as “Attachment No.
21", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


Chairman Smith remarked that the Board directed the staff to proceed in two of the real estate matters.  He
noted that the third real estate matter regarded a Resolution authorizing a corrective Deed and the
authorization for the Chairman to sign the corrected Deed.  


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to authorize the Chairman to execute a Resolution authorizing a
corrected deed regarding the Johnson mitigation tract for Lake McIntosh and execute the deeds to record
same.  Commissioner Pfeifer seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.  A copy of the Resolution,
identified as “Attachment No. 22", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


ADJOURNMENT:
Commissioner Frady made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 9:15 p.m.  Commissioner Horgan seconded the
motion.  The motion carried 5-0.


___________________________________                                __________________________________________
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk                          Jack R.  Smith, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 12  day of June, 2008.th


___________________________________
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance?


Approved by Purchasing?


Reviewed  by Legal?


Approved by Administrative Staff?


Staff Notes


Print Form


Parks and Recreation Anita Godbee, C.P.R.P.


Anita Godbee Thursday, June 12, 2008


Approval of a budget adjustment to accept $290 as reimbursement from Outdoor Concepts, Inc. and to increase the Parks and 


Recreation Department's Vehicle Repair Account by $290. 


While cutting grass at Kiwanis Park, contracted landscape company Outdoor Concepts, Inc. inadvertently hit a rock and broke out a 


window in a Recreation vehicle.  Outdoor Concepts, Inc. submitted check to reimburse the county for the expense of replacing the 


window. 


Approval to accept reimbursement and to increase line account  Vehicle Repair in the amount of $290. Revenues 


would also be increased by $290, resulting in a zero impact to the overall budget. 


No


No


Yes Thursday, June 12, 2008


No


Yes


Yes Yes












COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance?


Approved by Purchasing?


Reviewed  by Legal?


Approved by Administrative Staff?


Staff Notes


Print Form


Public Works/Road Department Philip Mallon


Same, if needed Thursday, June 12, 2008


Approval of annual contract with Georgia Department of Transportation for Local Assistance Road Program (LARP) resurfacing 


projects. 


Every year counties and cities submit a request to GDOT  for LARP funds for resurfacing local roads. The LARP Program pays for the 


cost of materials only. This contract represents the County's request as submitted to GDOT. 


 


This contract is for resurfacing a list of roads totalling 9.66 miles. The value of the contract is $413,800.44. These roads will be 


scheduled for the 2009 paving season.


Approval of the contact with GDOT for resurfacing 9.66 miles of local roads.


The county performs the work and is then reimbursed by GDOT for the cost of materials only.


Yes Annually


No


Yes Thursday, June 12, 2008


Yes


Yes


Yes Yes





		PublicWorksLARPContractAgendaRequestFile

		PublicWorksLARPContractBackup










COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance?


Approved by Purchasing?


Reviewed  by Legal?


Approved by Administrative Staff?


Staff Notes


Print Form


Fayette County Water System Tony Parrott


Tony Parrott June 12, 2008


Approval to accept the Water Committee's recommendation to the Board of Commissioners to award the bid for the Flint River 


Pump Station Additional Pumping Capacity to the low bidder, All South Constructors, Inc., at a cost of $372,203.00.


There are two pumps at the Flint River pump station that are about twelve years old.  They have been rebuilt in the past and do not 


have the efficiency they once had.  This request is to add an additional pump, which will be a 10 mgd variable speed pump that 


would enable the Water System to pull the maximum amount of water available by our permit from the Flint River according to the 


flow.


Approval to award the bid to All South Constructors, Inc. for an additional pump at the Flint River Pumping Station in the amount of 


$372,203.00.


Funding will come from the Water System Renewal and Extension fund.


No


No


Yes Thursday, June 12, 2008


Yes


Yes


Yes Yes





		WaterSystemFlintRiverPumpStationAgendaRequestFile

		WaterSystemFlintRiverPumpStationBackup

		Sheet1












The Agenda
Board of Commissioners


June 12, 2008
  7:00 P.M.


Call to Order, Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance.


Acceptance of Agenda.


PUBLIC HEARING:


A. Consideration of the County’s proposed Annual Budget for Fiscal
Year beginning July 1, 2008 and ending June 30, 2009.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


CONSENT AGENDA:


1. Approval of the Water Committee’s recommendation to award the bid
for the Flint River Pump Station additional pumping capacity to the
low bidder All South Constructors, Inc. in the amount of $372,203.


2. Approval of a budget adjustment to accept $290 as reimbursement
from Outdoor Concepts, Inc. and to increase the Parks and
Recreation Department’s Vehicle Repair Account by $290.  


3. Approval of annual contract with Georgia Department of
Transportation for Local Assistance Road Program (LARP)
resurfacing projects.


4. Approval of intergovernmental contract with the University of Georgia
Cooperative Extension Service for the County’s annual budget
contribution for salaries and benefits for Fayette County Extension
Service employees.  


5. Approval of minutes for Board of Commissioners’ Budget Meeting
held on May 20 and the Board of Commissioners’ meeting held on
May 22, 2008.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT


ATTORNEY’S REPORT


STAFF REPORTS


BOARD REPORTS


EXECUTIVE SESSION


ADJOURNMENT


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS


Jack Smith, Chairman
Herb Frady, Vice-Chairman


Robert Horgan
Eric Maxwell
Peter Pfeifer


i


STAFF


Jack Krakeel, Interim County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney


Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk


Floyd Jones, Deputy Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION


Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES


2  and 4  Thursday each month at 7:00 pmnd th


i


COMMISSION OFFICE


Administrative Complex
Suite 100


140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


Phone: (770) 460-5730 ext.  5400
Fax: (770) 460-9412


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance?


Approved by Purchasing?


Reviewed  by Legal?


Approved by Administrative Staff?


Staff Notes


Print Form


Extension Service Sheldon Hammond


Jack Krakeel Thursday, June 12, 2008


Approval of intergovernmental contract with the University of Georgia Cooperative Extension Service for the County's annual 


budget contribution for salaries and benefits for Fayette County Extension Service employees.


The Fayette County Extension Service is a local office of the University of Georgia Cooperative Extension Service. Their operation is 


provided and under the control of the University System. However, Fayette County provides office space and other types of support 


to the Extension Service, including funds to augment hours and salaries of the employees. The employees are State employees, thus 


the supplemental funds provided by Fayette County are actually paid to the University, who disperses payment to the employees. 


 


Annually, the County signs an agreement with UGA Cooperative Service establishing the amount of funds the County will pay to 


them. For FY '09, the contribution from Fayette County will be $56,660.64.


Approval of the intergovernmental contract with University of Georgia Cooperative Extension Service for funding supplemental 


employee costs in the amount of $56,660.64.


Yes Annually


No


Yes Thursday, June 12, 2008


Yes


Yes


Yes





		ExtensionServiceAgreementAgendaRequestFile

		ExtensionServicesAgreementBackup










COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance?


Approved by Purchasing?


Reviewed  by Legal?


Approved by Administrative Staff?


Staff Notes


Print Form


FINANCE MARY HOLLAND


MARY HOLLAND Thursday, June 12, 2008


PUBLIC HEARTING FOR FAYETTE COUNTY'S PROPOSED ANNUAL BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2009,  BEGINNING JULY 1, 2008 AND 


ENDING JUNE 30, 2009.


The proposed budget for Fiscal Year 2009 has been prepared and submitted by all departments and has now been reviewed by 


Finance Department Staff, the County Administrator and the Board of Commissioners. There must now be two public hearings on 


the proposed budget. The proposed budget document has been available for review by the public for quite some time. 


 


The proposed budget includes CIP/Capital requests, staffing requests, and operations requests. 


 


The second public hearing will be held on June 26, after which the budget should be adopted.


Hold first of two public hearings on the proposed budget.


No


No


Yes Thursday, June 12, 2008


Yes


Yes


Yes Yes







        REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES                EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES        
TRANSFERS TRANSFERS TOTAL


FROM TOTAL TO EXPENDITURES
PROJECTED CASH FUNDING RECOMMENDED CASH AND
 REVENUES  RESERVES SOURCES EXPENDITURES  RESERVES  OTHER USES 


Governmental Funds:
General Fund 48,060,984$     128,813$          48,189,797$     48,189,797$          -$                        48,189,797$          


Special Revenue Funds:
EMS 3,514,800         3,514,800         3,106,541              408,259               3,514,800              
Fire Services 7,952,100         7,952,100         7,467,251              484,849               7,952,100              
Street Lights 223,000            -                        223,000            223,000                 223,000                 
State Confiscated Property 20,000              55,600              75,600              75,600                   75,600                   
Jail Construction 447,000            53,000              500,000            500,000                 500,000                 
Juvenile Supervision 25,000              4,000                29,000              29,000                   29,000                   
Victims Assistance 172,000            195,645            367,645            367,645                 367,645                 
Drug Abuse and Treatment 70,000              70,000              54,265                   15,735                 70,000                   
Law Library 57,000              50,077              107,077            107,077                 107,077                 
S.P.L.O.S.T. (Library) 60,000              205,693            265,693            265,693                 265,693                 
Emergency Phone E-911 2,695,662         2,695,662       2,645,716            49,946                 2,695,662            


Total Special Revenue Funds 15,236,562$     564,015$          15,800,577$     14,841,788$          958,789$             15,800,577$          


Capital/CIP Funds: 
Early Warning Sirens 71,800$                 71,800$                 
Capital Projects 146,062                 146,062                 
CIP Projects 1,424,670              1,424,670              


Total Capital/CIP Funds -$                  1,642,532$       1,642,532$       1,642,532$            -$                    1,642,532$            


Total Governmental Funds 63,297,546$     2,335,360$       65,632,906$     64,674,117$          958,789$             65,632,906$          


Enterprise Funds
Solid Waste (Landfill) 116,000            78,934              194,934            194,934                 194,934                 


Water System 13,326,250       13,326,250       13,326,250            -                      13,326,250            
Total Enterprise Funds 13,442,250       78,934              13,521,184       13,521,184            -                      13,521,184            


Internal Service Funds 
Vehicle Replacement 1,337,223         1,337,223         1,337,223              1,337,223              


Total of All Budgeted Funds 76,739,796$     3,751,517$       80,491,313$     79,532,524$          958,789$             80,491,313$          


Included are the following BOC additional recommendations from the Budget Workshop on May 20, 2008:


Revenues
1) Decrease revenue for property taxes associated with Heavy Duty Equipment (3,500)$                  


Expenditures
2) Additional funding for the Senior Citizens Center's meals program 7,246$                   
3) Additional funding for promotions - Sheriff CID 25,000                   
4) Additional funding for the construction of Snead Road 92,000                   


124,246$               


  FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA  


BUDGETED FUNDS


RECOMMENDED FUNDING AND APPROPRIATIONS @ 6/4/08
  FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009


  BUDGET SUMMARY INFORMATION  


 







 STATE OF GEORGIA      
 
COUNTY OF FAYETTE 
 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2008-10 
 
 


BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR  2008 – 2009 
 
 


WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia is authorized by 


Georgia law to establish and adopt a budget for the purpose of providing appropriations for the 


proper and orderly operation of government in Fayette County, Georgia. 


NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the 


Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, that the Fayette County budget for the 


2008-2009 fiscal year be adopted for the purpose of providing appropriations in the following 


amounts for the proper and orderly operation of government in Fayette County: 


 


TOTAL GENERAL FUND         $     48,189,797 


TOTAL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS             14,841,788 


TOTAL CAPITAL/CIP PROJECT FUNDS               1,642,532 


TOTAL SOLID WASTE FUND                    194,934 


TOTAL WATER SYSTEM                      13,326,250 


TOTAL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS      1,337,223   


TOTAL OF ALL FUNDS          $    79,532,524 


 


DULY ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia this 26th 


day of June, 2008.        


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
OF FAYETTE COUNTY 


 
 


  _____________________________ 
Jack R. Smith, Chairman 


 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Carol Chandler, County Clerk 





		FinanceDeptFY2009BudgetProposalAgendaRequestFile

		FinanceDeptFY2009BudgetProposalBackup1

		June 4 2008



		FinanceDeptFY 2009BudgetResolutionBackup2






Minutes
Board of Commissioners Budget Workshop


May 20, 2008
  8:30 A.M.


The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in a Budget Workshop on Tuesday, May 20, 2008, at
8:30 a.m. in the Commissioners’ Conference Room at the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall
Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.  


Commissioners Present: Jack Smith, Chairman
Herb Frady, Vice-Chairman
Robert Horgan
Eric Maxwell
Peter Pfeifer


Staff Present: Jack Krakeel, Interim County Administrator
Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant


 Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk
Mary Holland, Chief Financial Officer
Toni Jo Howard, Assistant Finance Director
Sergio Acevedo, Budget Officer


______________________________________________________________________________________


Chairman Smith called the meeting to order.


DISCUSSION OF THE PROPOSED 2009 FISCAL YEAR MAINTENANCE AND OPERATION BUDGET:
OVERVIEW OF THE PROPOSED  2009 FISCAL YEAR BUDGET


Interim County Administrator Jack Krakeel commended staff for the great job that they had done in preparing
this year’s budget. He said there were representatives from the Fayette County Development Authority,
Promise Place, Department of Family and Children Services and the Public Defender’s Office who have
requested to appear today to speak to the Board.  He asked Ms. Holland to provide the Board with an overview
of the 2009 Fiscal Year Budget for the M & O as well as revenues.                           


Chief Financial Officer Mary Holland distributed a copy of the budget summary overview to the Board and staff.
A copy of the summary, identified as “Attachment No. 1", follows these minutes and is made an official part
hereof.  She commended the elected officials and department heads on the tremendous job in preparing their
budget request.  She said the budget was balanced and this allowed for the current tax rates and there was
no tax increase proposed.  She said in looking at the overall County budget there was a 6.2% decrease.  


Ms. Holland remarked that there were some old existing projects that staff would like the Board to consider
closing and removing from the books and utilize the existing funds to actually fund the projects that were being
recommended in FY 2009.  She presented a list of the closed capital and CIP projects to the Board.  A copy







Board of Commissioners Budget Meeting
May 20, 2008
Page 2


of the list, identified as “Attachment No. 2", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  She
noted that these projects totaled approximately $1.6 million.  She noted that staff had done an excellent job
in researching all of these projects and determining why they were still listed on the books.  


The Board commended Ms. Holland and the Finance Department staff for doing such an excellent job in
presenting the FY 2009 budget for the Board’s review.  


FAYETTE COUNTY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY


Randy Hayes and Matt Forshee were present to discuss this budget.  


Interim County Administrator Jack Krakeel remarked that this budget reflected the same M & O budget as last
year with the exception of two additional funding requests related directly to economic development.  He said
these included $25,000 to assist with the Clayton State University Project and also $50,000 to assist with
research and development for industrial land for a total of $75,0000 or a 26% increase in this budget.  He said
it was his suggestion that these individuals come before the Board today to present their budget request since
it had been his recommendation to staff for no increase in funding.  


Matt Forshee remarked that Clayton State University was looking to grow here in Fayette County and offering
full scale degrees.  He said it was anticipated that the University would reach full capacity at their current facility
in the next three years and discussions were still underway as to whether this would involve a new facility or
expansion at the current location.  


Randy Hayes said this would be a one time request from the University.  He said the Authority had put this
request in the budget as a supplement feature to the budget but not having it approved or anything of that
nature.  He said the University had now solidified their permanency and noted that there were over 300
students currently attending this facility.    


There was a consensus of the Board to approve putting $50,000 in contingency and have the Development
Authority come back to the Board with a specific need so that the Board would know exactly where the money
was going, and to give Clayton State University the $25,000 with the condition that the money be spent for
infrastructure, design improvement and things of that nature and not for operating expenses.  


PROMISE PLACE


Sonya Strickland was present to discuss this budget.  She reviewed the services that Promise Place provides.


Interim County Administrator Jack Krakeel said he had previously discussed this budget with Ms. Strickland
and she concurred with him that they explore additional revenues from the other counties in the Circuit to
support their activities and programs in lieu of granting the budget request which was a 50% increase.


It was the consensus of the Board to approve $20,000 for Promise Place which was the same level of funding
as approved in last year’s budget.  







Board of Commissioners Budget Meeting
May 20, 2008
Page 3


DEPARTMENT OF FAMILY & CHILDREN SERVICES


Mary Davis was present to discuss this budget.  She provided an overview of the Department and how it was
doing as a County within the State.  


Commissioner Maxwell remarked that the recommendation was $41,800 and Ms. Davis said she was in
agreement with that amount and not asking for any additional funds.  Ms. Davis said she just wanted to take
this opportunity to review the Department’s services and provide the Board with a status of the Department.
                     


PUBLIC DEFENDER


Attorney Joe Saia was present to discuss this budget.  Attorney Saia remarked that he had originally disagreed
with staff’s recommendation but after reviewing his budget, he would agree with the recommendation
especially in light of the economic down turn.  


The Board briefly discussed the collection of fees in the Public Defender’s Office and Attorney Saia said he
would investigate the issue of fees but felt the majority of fees were being collected by State Court.   


Ms. Holland remarked that staff needed to do an in-depth analysis on this because there were fees received
from other courts including Superior Court and State Court.  


The Board thanked Attorney Saia for all of the work that he and his staff have done in the Public Defender’s
Office.  


At this time, the Board decided to take a short lunch break at 12:00 p.m.


Chairman Smith reconvened the meeting at 12:45 p.m.


RECREATION


Ms. Holland remarked that $150,000 was budgeted for Peachtree City recreation and $30,000 was budgeted
for the Town of Tyrone for recreation.  


SENIOR SERVICES


Interim County Administrator Jack Krakeel remarked that Senior Services was requesting additional funding
for the congregate meal program.  He said part of his recommendation to Senior Services was that they should
be looking at other municipalities in Fayette County for revenue to support the congregate meal program based
on population.  He said Senior Services had done that and gone to the respective jurisdictions but he was not
sure of the status of the funding requests.  He said it was his recommendation that $117,246 be approved for
this budget and the Board agreed.  







Board of Commissioners Budget Meeting
May 20, 2008
Page 4


SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT - C.I.D. DIVISION


Interim County Administrator Jack Krakeel remarked there was a personnel request for this department that
needed to be considered that was inadvertently not discussed during personnel budget requests.  He noted
that there had been two promotions previously requested during the period when promotions were frozen last
year pending the U.G.A. study being completed.  He said staff’s research determined that these promotions
were authorized and approved positions that needed to be adjusted.  He said the financial impact for one
position would be $7,000 and $11,000 for another position for an aggregate total of $18,000 per year.  
It was the consensus of the Board to approve this request in the budget for a total of $18,000 per year plus
benefits.  


ROAD DEPARTMENT


Interim County Administrator Jack Krakeel remarked on the Snead Road issue.  He said based on staff’s
analysis $92,000 in funding would have to be added for this project.  He noted that there was $212,000 that
had been identified for State aid and the rules for accessing this funding would be introduced this summer.
He said with the change in the rules, it was anticipated that it would be at least next summer before the County
would receive that funding after going through the application and approval process.  He pointed out that the
County would not be able to receive State aid until all right-of-way acquisition was completed.  He said
currently there was an 80% commitment from the property owners but the County still had to go through the
process of acquiring the remainder of the right-of-way either through condemnation or negotiated purchase.
He noted that the clearing and grading work on Snead Road should begin in late November assuming the
County had all of the right-of-way.  He said it was anticipated that paving of Snead Road would begin in the
summer of 2009.  


Mr. Krakeel asked the Board for authorization to put the $92,000 in the budget for this project and it was the
consensus of the Board to approve this. 


RECREATION


Interim County Administrator Jack Krakeel discussed the Kenwood Park recreation facility.  He remarked that
the projected cost of Phase II of Kenwood Park was approximately $2.5 million and this was based on a two-
year old figure.  He remarked that the landscaping that was done still needed to be paid for in the amount of
approximately $68,000.                 


Mr. Krakeel noted that the discussion of proposed updates to the Fayette County Recreation Needs
Assessment would be coming up for discussion at the Board’s Workshop meeting in June.


- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -


The Board reviewed the remaining proposed budgets for all departments, including expenditures and revenue
forecasts and staff provided input.  







Board of Commissioners Budget Meeting
May 20, 2008
Page 5


Staff reminded the Board that a public notice would be issued to the press to advertise the two required public
hearings for the proposed budget.  The public hearings for discussion of the FY 2009 budget will be scheduled
for June 12 and June 26, 2008.


- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -


The Board completed all budget discussions at this meeting and it was determined that it would not be
necessary to meet on Wednesday, May 21  as advertised for further budget discussions.  st


ADJOURNMENT:
Commissioner Horgan made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 4:15 p.m.  Commissioner Pfeifer seconded
the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.


_______________________________ _________________________________
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk Jack R. Smith, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette
County, Georgia on the 12  day of June, 2008.  th


________________________________
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk





